Vowels

There are two types of vowels in French : 

1) Oral vowels (the air escapes through the mouth) Note the different ways of spelling the sound.

A. Plain oral vowels 
A

like the a of 'cat'.(beware, never like fate or hate).ex : papa, sa, mâle…

EU

like the i of 'sir'.ex : le, je, feu, jeux…

OE

like the second ar in particular.ex : heure, jeune, oeuf…

I

like the ee in 'fee' (lips on the side like a smile).voice goes up.ex : si, lit, y…

U

similar to the i but lips pushed out and rounded.voice goes way up.ex : une, lu, bu…
(beware, this sound is not that found in pool or full).

O

like the vowel sound in ‘toe’.voice goes deep down.ex : pose, au, aux, eau, eaux, bateau, chevaux …
Sometimes pronounced like the o in 'not'. voice goes up.ex : bonne, fort…

É

note the direction of the accent  like ‘hey’.voice goes down.
ex : les, et, nez, chanter, chanté, épée, cassées, pied…

È

note the direction of the accent like the e in 'net'.voice goes up. Mouth opens wide.
ex : bête, près, ai, avais, lait, est, elle, bec, neige, raquette, ancienne, vexe…

Practice the difference : Hélène [ÉlÈn], et [É], est [È]…
B. Sounds that combine two or more plain oral vowels.


[UI]

combines u and i. ex : huit, pluie, huile…

[OU]

combines o and u like the oo in 'pool'. ex : ou, coule, choux… Practice the difference : lu [lU} and loup [lOU].

[OUI]

combines [ou] and i like the wea in 'weak'. ex : oui, Louis, Kiwi, weekend.

[OI]

combines [ou] and a. Ex : moi, toi, trois, Troy…

2) Nasal vowels (the air escapes through the mouth and nose).

In these nasal vowels, the ‘n’ is only there to indicate that this is a nasal sound ; it is not pronounced like N ; you only hear a nasal vowel sound.These do not exist in English. Try to pronouce them while pinching your nose ; after, you can actually speak like that by using a muscle in the back of your mouth.To find these sounds, here is what I recommand ; start with saying out loud the plain vowel, then gradually pinch your nose and study the sound that results. Pay close attention to the position of your lips, tongue and air-flow. Repeat a couple of times, then try the same exercise without pinching your nose. Then, try to say the nasal sound directly.

After, the difficulty is to be able to switch between nasal and oral vowels…


[IN]

i + nasal (lips on the side like a smile)
ex : cinq, fin, matin, un (not oon), main, faim, chien (always with i before), sympathique…

[AN]

a + nasal (lips open in square)ex : an, dance, lampe, en, ensemble, temps, paon, faon…

[ON]

o + nasal. (lips almost closed and rounded. The air escapes almost exclusively through the nose. It is a very deep sound) ex : ont, sont, bon, long, ongle…


Practice the difference ; saint [sIN], sang [sAN], son [sON].

ACCENTS


Accents are signs used over certain vowels (a, i, o, u) to distinguish between two words :

a (has); à (at, to, in)

ou (or); où (where)

or over the 'e' to change the sound of that letter (Hélène).

 

SILENT LETTERS


 Sometimes in French, and specially at the end of a word, certain letters are not pronounced (but see the section on liaison below). Remember that spoken French words often end on a vowel sound.

The common silent letters are:

· the letter e (amie, épée, mademoiselle). 

· the letter s (les maisons). 

· all the consonants except L, Q and V. Consonants are always pronounced when they are followed by a vowel. (étudiant / étudiante).

LIAISON (word linking)

In order to avoid a clash of vowels between two words, the last silent letter of the first word may sometimes be pronounced. The normal sound value will be preserved except for :

· s and x which assume the sound Z 

les enfants [lÉ] [zANfAN]. six amis [sI] [zAmI].

· d which assumes the sound T 

grand ami [grAN] [tAmI].

Note that the consonant is then pronounced as if it were the first sound of the following word. The two words don't have to be pronounced together, you could actually breathe between them.

ELISION

In order to avoid a clash of vowels between two words, the final e of a few short words like je, de, ne and que is dropped when the next word begins with a vowel sound, that is, with a mute H or a vowel.

Elision is shown by an apostrophe.
ex : J'habite [jAbIt]
d'Albert [dAlbÉr]
n'ose [nOz]
qu'elle [kÈl] …

Note that the consonant becomes the first sound of the following word. They are pronounced together.

CONSONANTS


The letter between [] represent a sound, not the consonant ; [k] is not ‘Kay’ but the [k] sound in cut.
The consonants which are not listed below are pronounced the same way in both languages.

[k/p/t] (kaput) are much softer in French ; you do not exhale any air. Try forming the sound with your lips silently, then do not exhale any air, but say a vowel. I like to say that the consonant starts the vowel.

[k] can be written

c + a, o, u (camion, couleur),
q, qu (que, qui), the u is silent.
k (képi, kiwi).

[ss] like the c in 'lace' can be written :

· s as in 'danser' or ss (when between two vowels) as 'aussi'. 

· c + i or e.
ex : cinéma, cerise…
c needs a cedilla ç in front of a, o, u to keep this sound [ss].
ex : ça, reçu… 

· Tion is pronounced [ssION] (beware, no English [CH] !).
ex : attention, station… 

H

is generally not pronounced at all. We do not exhale.
ex : hotel [OtÈl], Henri [ANrI]…

[ch]

the combinaison of c + h normally produces a sound similar to the sh of 'shave' (beware, no English [TCH] !).
ex : chocolat, chapeau, chien…

[j]

like the sound of s in 'leisure'. ex : je, jouer…
and also g + i and e. ex : âge, rougi… (beware, no English [DJ] !).

[z]

like the z of 'razor'.
ex : Zoé, zut…
Also s between two vowels (or with liaison, see before).
ex : osé [OzÉ], Asie [AzI]…
Note : to retain the sound [ss] between two vowels, the letter ‘s’ must be doubled.
Compare : désert [z] and dessert [ss].

[ille]

like i + the y in yahoo. ex : Camille, fille…
exceptions : 'mille, ville, tranquille' keep the [l] sound.

[R]

This sound is produced at the back of the mouth. It is never the Spanish rolled R. It is pretty smooth, and most of the time almost silent in the middle of a word. Here again, don’t forget that vowels are louder than consonants !
My advice to find that eery sound ; gargle, then hold down the tip of your tongue (with a pencil for instance). Then study the vibration that happens in the back of your mouth, just where the throat begins. Then use that sound to ‘start’ a vowel. rA, rI… Don’t worry, practice does it :-) !
ex : rat, riz, rue, rez, roue, par, sourire, parler, gris… 

Numbers

1-9 LES CHIFFRES - DIGITS

0 - zéro
1 - un
2 - deux
3 - trois
4 - quatre
5 - cinq
6 - six
7 - sept
8 - huit
9 - neuf 

10-19 LES NOMBRES IRREGULIERS - IRREGULAR NUMBERS

10 - dix
11 - onze
12 - douze
13 - treize
14 - quatorze
15 - quinze
16 - seize
17 - dix-sept
18 - dix-huit
19 - dix-neuf

20-69 LES NOMBRES REGULIERS - REGULAR NUMBERS

	VINGT
vingt et un
vingt-deux
vingt-trois
vingt-quatre
vingt-cinq
vingt-six
vingt-sept
vingt-huit
vingt-neuf 
	TRENTE
trente et un
trente-deux
trente-trois
trente-quatre
trente-cinq
trente-six
trente-sept
trente-huit
trente-neuf
	QUARANTE
quarante et un
quarante-deux
quarante-trois
quarante-quatre
quarante-cinq
quarante-six
quarante-sept
quarante-huit
quarante-neuf

	CINQUANTE
cinquante et un
cinquante-deux
cinquante-trois
cinquante-quatre
cinquante-cinq
cinquante-six
cinquante-sept
cinquante-huit
cinquante-neuf 
	SOIXANTE
soixante et un
soixante-deux
soixante-trois
soixante-quatre
soixante-cinq
soixante-six
soixante-sept
soixante-huit
soixante-neuf 
	 


Remarks :
- note that et is used in the numbers 21, 31, 41, 51 , 61.There is no hyphen.
- note that you lightly pronounce the final T sound in 21, 22…29, but not in 20. The G is never pronounced.
- the X in soixante and followers is pronouced SS.

70-99 LES NOMBRES ETRANGES - THE WEIRD ONES

OK, I must admit, those are weird… bravo to our northern francophones for using the words Septante, Octante and Nonante. But if you go to France, well, there is no way around it. You have to know and understand them. So here we go.

	SOIXANTE-DIX
soixante et onze
soixante-douze
soixante-treize
soixante-quatorze
soixante-quinze
soixante-seize
soixante-dix-sept
soixante-dix-huit
soixante-dix-neuf 
	QUATRE-VINGT-DIX
quatre-vingt-onze
quatre-vingt-douze
quatre-vingt-treize
quatre-vingt-quatorze
quatre-vingt quinze
quatre-vingt-seize
quatre-vingt-dix-sept
quatre-vingt-dix-huit
quatre-vingt-dix-neuf 

	QUATRE-VINGTS
quatre-vingt-un
quatre-vingt-deux
quatre-vingt-trois
quatre-vingt-quatre
quatre-vingt-cinq
quatre-vingt-six
quatre-vingt-sept
quatre-vingt-huit
quatre-vingt-neuf
	 


Remarks :
- note that unlike vingt et un, quatre-vingt-un and the following numbers loose their T sound.
- Quatre-vingts takes an S in writting when by itself or followed by a noun, but looses it when followed by another number.
- et is used in the numbers 21, 31, 41, 51, 61 and 71 but not in 81 and 91. There is no hyphen when et is used.

CENT, MILLE ET PLUS - ONE HUNDRED, ONE THOUSAND AND MORE

You made it so far ! the rest should be easier. 
It works exactly as in English ; you group your digits by three, and add the word cent or mille, or million, milliard… at the separation.
Note that just to make it more challenging, we use periods where English use commas, and vice versa :-). To say comma, we say virgule and then the following number.

The key is BREATHING.
Since it comes at the beginning, ou CANNOT pause after the word cent, you have to carry on to the 2 next digits, then breathe. 
On the contrary, since it is at the end of a 3 digit row, you CAN breathe after mille, million and milliard (you even have a period here to tell you it's ok). Again, as with heure, it becomes some sort of endings to your numbers.Training does it !

Now I have a nasty surprise for you… 5,6,8 and 10 drop their final sound before a consonant, like cent, mille, million, milliard… So make sure you get it right from now on.

CENT 
Never pronounce the T. Note that in the plural, cent does not take an S if followed by another number. Write trois cents but trois cent quinze.

THE TIME : L'HEURE

Quelle heure est-il ? What time is-it ?
Est-ce que vous avez l'heure s'il vous plaît ? Do you know what time it is, please?

	AM
Il est zéro heure.
Il est une heure
Il est deux heures
Il est trois heures
Il est quatre heures
Il est cinq heures
Il est six heures
Il est sept heures
Il est huit heures
Il est neuf heures
Il est dix heures
Il est onze heures
	PM
Il est douze heures.
Il est treize heures
Il est quatorze heures 
Il est quinze heures
Il est seize heures
Il est dix-sept heures
Il est dix-huit heures
Il est dix-neuf heures
Il est vingt heures
Il est vingt et une heure
Il est vingt-deux heures
Il est vingt-trois heures



Watch out !! In English, the expression o'clock may be left out when giving the time. In French, the word heure (or heures if it's more than one o'clock) is always used. It is abbreviated as h. 
Be very careful about the pronunciation ; there are lots of liaisons involved, and most importantly, THE WORD HEURE(S) IS pronouced IN THE SAME BREATH AS THE NUMBER, as if it were an weird ending to it.
So train if you want your message to get accross !

A quelle heure est le concert ? At what time is the concert ?
Le concert est à huit heures du soir. The concert is at 8 PM.

When it comes to telling the time, you have several ways. 

THE OFFICIAL TIME
Same idea as your military time, but much more used in France. All our formal shedules (TV, train, plane, business…) will use this official time. You run a 24 hours clock, and add the minutes straight after the word heure(s).
ex: le train est à 13h48. (1:48 PM). Le film est à 21h30 (9:30 PM)…

In informal settings, we much rather use the following expressions :


 We have our equivalents of noon and midnight :
- il est midi (noon),
- il est minuit (midnight).
Note that these 2 expressions do not require the word heure since their position in the day is self-implied.
I strongly recommend that you use these, since douze heures sounds a lot like deux heures, and it's very easy to be mistaken.

- et quart (quarter past) 
1h15 : il est une heure et quart. 
NOTE the difference between quart (pronouced car) et quatre (4). 

- moins le quart (quarter of) 
3h45 : il est quatre heures moins le quart. 
NOTE don't forget to say the following hour : THREE forty five is quarter of FOUR. 
You also want to glide your le as much as possible.

- et demie (and an half) 
1h30: il est une heure et demie. 
NOTE that demie becomes demi for midi and minuit. 
12h30: il est midi (ou minuit) et demi.

MINUTES PAST/TO THE HOUR

If the time you want to express cannot be divided into quarters (ex : 3h10, 12h05, 1h40, 7h55É), you have to indicate the number of minutes. Don't forget that the word heure(s) is never omitted (on the contrary, you don't say the word minute(s)). 

Just write the number of minutes straight after the hour, as in the official time. 
- 3h10 : il est trois heures dix. 
- 12h05 : il est douze heures cinq. il est midi (minuit) cinq. 
- 1h40 : il est une heure quarante. 
- 7h55 : il est sept heures cinquante-cinq. 

If the time you want to express is PAST THE HALF HOUR, then you can also say the minutes remaining TO the next full hour. Don't forget to go to the next hour ; 1:40 is Twenty to two ! 
We mostly use this way for round amount of minutes (25 of, 20 of, 15 of, 10 ->1 of)

In this case, you have to use the expression MOINS to express the notion TO. 
- 1h40 : il est deux heures moins vingt. 
- 7h55 : il est huit heures moins cinq.

To indicate the difference between A.M. and P.M., we use the following expressions : 
 
- du matin (in the morning) 
ex : 10h30 A.M. -- il est dix heures et demie du matin. 

- de l'après-midi (in the afternoon)
ex : 3h05 P.M. -- il est trois heures cinq de l'après-midi. 

- du soir P.M. (after 7 P.M.) 
ex : 9h40 P.M. -- il est dix heures moins vingt du soir. 
NOTE that midi and minuit do not require this precision as there position in the day is self-contained.

We only give this additionnal info when the context doesn't give the part of the day. For exemple, if I say "J'ai rendez-vous chez le dentiste à 3 heures", well, it's not going to be 3 in the morning. Or if I say, "Je dîne avec Pierre à 8h30", dîne implies that it is in the evening. But when telling a story, an starting with the time, this info is important "Il était huit heures du matin et j'écoutais la radio quand…" well, I could be listening to the radio at 3PM.

Don't forget to use "h" instead of ":" when you write down your times !

MILLE
The word mille never takes an s.
Don't forget that we use a coma when English uses a period, and vice veras.

MILLION (million) , MILLIARD (billion)

VIRGULE (comma)

5,6,8,10 LA GRANDE SURPRISE / PRIX
5,6,8,10 THE BIG SURPRISE / PRICES

So, you think you know everything about numbers. Well, I have a last surprise for you, and it is a nasty one… Cinq, Six, Huit and Dix loose their final consonant when followed by a consonant, like cent, mille, francs, or minutes. Training on that part is essential to achieve a correct pronunciation and understanding of prices. 
As per francs, well like heure and mille, you have to add it to your number, as if it were an ending. You can't breathe before ! If there is a coma, then say franc instead of virgule. Just like heure.
And Pleeeease, when saying the word franc(s), drop the C and the S ; it's not sausages we are talking about !!! 

Nasal Vowels
Lots of my students have difficulties figuring out when a vowel followed by an N or an M will combine to form a nasal sounds, or when the 2 sounds will be distinctly pronounced. Although I am not an expert, I hope this simple explanation will help.

The main idea is that, to have a nasal sound, you need a vowel followed by an N or an M. When used alone (such as in words like un, on, an) or followed by a consonant (except another N or M), these combinations will combine to form a nasal sound. The N or M sound will totally disappear, and you'll pronounce the vowel letting the air escape through your nose.

 

1) How to pronounce a nasal sound ? 
Remember that whatever the spelling, these sounds will be pronounced the same way. Please go and check my Introduction to French pronunciation lesson if you want to listen to the nasals pronunciation with real audio.

In these nasal vowels, the N or M is only there to indicate that this is a nasal sound ; it is never pronounced like N or M ; you only hear a nasal vowel sound. These do not exist in English. Try to pronounce the plain vowel while pinching your nose ; after, you can actually speak like that by using a muscle in the back of your mouth. A good idea is to practice in front of a mirror. The shape of your mouth is really the condition for the right sound.

[IN]
i + nasal (lips on the side like a smile)
Can be spelled in, im. ain. aim, un, ym, yen, ein, and ien (do pronounce the i and then the [IN])
intéressant, important, train, faim, un, sympathique, moyen, peinture, chien. 

Note that UM is usually pronounced the latin way, U and M separately, like in calcium or aluminium.

[AN]
a + nasal (lips open wide in a square)
Can be spelled en,em, an, am, aon.
enfant, temps, an, ambiance, paon.

[ON]
o + nasal (lips rounded and alomost closed)
Can be spelled on and om.
pont, ombre.

2) Nasal or not ?
When used alone (such as in words like an, on, un) or followed by a consonant (except another N or M), these combinations will combine to form a nasal sound. There are 3 main cases :

a) Nasal alone, or at the beginning of a word, followed by a consonant (except N or M).
- an, on, un, en,
- IMportant, ONcle, AMple, INtéressant.

b) Nasal at the end of a word, or followed by a consonant (except N or M, and ENT in a verb).
- pAON, américAIN, sON, 
- tEMps, rONd, sONt, pEINt, intéressANt

c) Nasal in the middle of a word, locked between 2 consonants.
- intEMpérie, orANge, bONjour.

So as you now understand, it is really the following consonant that allows the nasal to lock into one. Now, the golden rule :

Whenever a consonant is followed by a vowel, this consonant will be pronounced
ex : say intéressant (t is silent), but intéressante (t is pronounced). 

Based on this rule, whenever an N or an M are followed by a VOWEL (or another N or M and a vowel), these N and M will have to be pronounced. If they are pronounced, they cannot be nasal. So you'll pronounce the vowel and the N or M separately. 

ex : cousin (IN nasal) but cousine (i,n) 
américain (IN) but américaine (ê,n)
un, but uni (u, n, i)
inaperçue (i,n,a)
aime (ê,m)

When a nasal is followed by an N or an M, these will be transparent, so if there is a vowel after, it will break the nasal apart.
ex : Anne (a,n)
innactif (i,n,a)
bonne (b,o,n)
immortel (i,m,o,r)
viennent (v,i, ê,n) remember, ent is silent in a verb.

To Love – To Like – To Enjoy
To say to like or enjoy something or someone, use the verb Aimer with an adverb. 

	Je déteste Paul
	I hate Paul

	Je déteste le chocolat
	I hate chocolate

	Je n’aime pas Paul
	I don’t like/love Paul

	Je n’aime pas le chocolat
	I don’t like chocolate

	Je n’aime pas beaucoup Paul
	I don’t like Paul very much

	Je n’aime pas beaucoup le chocolat
	I don’t like chocolate very much

	J’aime assez Paul
	I kind of like Paul

	J’aime assez nager
	I kind of enjoy swimming

	J’aime bien Paul
	I like Paul

	J’aime bien nager
	I enjoy swimming

	J’aime beaucoup Paul
	I like Paul very much

	J’aime beaucoup nager
	I like swimming a lot

	J’adore Paul
	I’m very fond of Paul – I think he’s great

	J’adore nager
	I love to swim 


  

When you use the construction Aimer + person’s name, without any adverb, it means that you are in love with that person. 

Compare : 

	J’aime Paul
	I am in love with Paul (love)

	J’aime bien Paul
	I like Paul (friend)

	J’aime beaucoup Paul
	I like Paul a lot (friend)


Exception ; you can use aimer without an adverb with your immediate family (parents, siblings, children, pets) to say that you love them (not that you are in love with them), but NEVER with your friends. 

HOW TO POLITELY ASK, ACCEPT AND REFUSE
When it comes to ask someone whether they'd like to to something, to accept or refuse, you have to open your mind a little and understand that you are not going to be able to do a literal translation. Both languages use different expressions, and it is crucial that you memorize them to be polite and make yourself understood.

First, you must learn these 3 irregular verbs. Note that their irregularities follow the same pattern.

	VOULOIR
want 
	POUVOIR
can / to be able to
	DEVOIR
must / to have to

	 
	 
	 

	Je veux
	Je peux
	Je dois

	Tu veux
	Tu peux
	Tu dois

	Il, elle, on veut
	Il, elle, on peut
	Il, elle, on doit

	Nous voulons
	Nous pouvons
	Nous devons

	Vous voulez
	Vous pouvez
	Vous devez

	Ils, elles veulent
	Ils, elles peuvent
	Ils, elles doivent


 

How to ask 
Where in English, you use the expression "would you like to…", the French use the expression "do you want to…". I hear lots of people use "est-ce que tu aimes/vous aimez" ; this does not mean "would you like" as in an offer, but refers to taste as in "do you like/enjoy going to the movies ; est-ce que tu aimes aller au cinéma ?". As always, remember that if these verbs are followed by another verb, that verb will have to be in the infinitive form.

Ex: Would you like to go to the movies with me ?
Est-ce que tu veux aller au cinéma avec moi ? Veux-tu aller au cinéma avec moi ?
Est-ce que vous voulez aller au cinéma avec moi ? Voulez-vous aller au cinéma avec moi ?

Now, if you want to ask someone if he wouldn't mind doing something, as in a favor, use the expression "est-ce que tu veux bien…"
Ex: Would you mind eating Chinese ? 
Est-ce que tu veux bien manger Chinois ?
Est-ce que vous voulez bien manger Chinois ? 
Remark: I wouldn't use the inversion method to ask the question with that expression.

And also useful :
Can he play tennis at 5 PM ?
Est-ce qu'il peut jouer au tennis à cinq heures ? Peut-il jouer au tennis à cinq heures ?
Note that in this example, you are not asking whether he wants to play, but if he CAN play. It's pretty close, but not exactly the same thing.

Also, if you are asking for something, as in expressing a wish, you have to use the conditional of vouloir : je voudrais, tu voudrais, il voudrait, nous voudrions, vous voudriez, ils voudraient. 
Ex: Je voudrais écouter la radio, s'il vous plaît. (May I please listen to the radio ?)

How to accept

You can use the following expressions :
D'accord - Ok, agreed.
Volontiers - with pleasure.
Oui, je veux BIEN - Yes, I'd love to (note the use of bien here. You'll never here someone say "Je veux" in this situation, always "je veux bien")

Ex: Est-ce que tu veux aller au cinéma avec moi ? 
Oui, je veux bien. Merci.

Est-ce que vous voulez étudier la leçon avec nous ?
Volontiers, merci.

Est-ce que tu veux bien regarder la télévision ?
D'accord !

How to politely refuse

The key word is politely. You can say "Non, je ne veux pas", but it is not very subtile :-)
So, rather than" vouloir", use "pouvoir" and the following expressions, and give an excuse:

Désolé(e/s), mais… Sorry, but…
Malheureusement : unfortunately,
Je voudrais bien, mais… I would love to, but…
Nous voudrions bien, mais: we would love to, but:…
(Note the difference between "Je veux bien", meaning I'd love to, I ACCEPT, I will do it - and "Je voudrais bien, mais…" meaning I'd love to BUT… I am going to give you a reason why I CANNOT do it)

Ex: Est-ce que tu veux aller au cinéma avec moi.
Je voudrais bien, mais je ne peux pas ; je dois étudier pour l'examen.

Est-ce que vous voulez étudier la leçon avec nous ?
Malheureusement, nous ne pouvons pas. Désolés !

Est-ce que tu veux jouer au tennis à cinq heures ?
Désolée, mais je ne peux pas. Je dois travailler

FRANÇAIS, FRANCAISES, LA FRANCE, etc.…

So you are a bit lost as per what to say to say French and France, here are a few tips for you: 

When talking about the country (France), say : 

· La France, when you are referring to it, 
ex: j'aime la France.

· En France, with verbs of location,
ex: je vais en France.
Ex: j'habite en France.
Ex: je suis en France. 

· De France, to say it comes from it,
Ex: c'est une ville de France.
Ex: je viens de France.

When talking about the language (The French language, French), say :
· Le français,
Ex: j'étudie le français.
Ex: j'aime le français. 
Exception: no LE after parler,
Ex: je parle français.

· En français to translate "in French",
Ex: ce film est en français.
Ex: je suis bon en français. 

When talking about something or someone that is French (adjective), say:
· français, for things or people that are masculine, either singular or plural,
Ex: voici un vin français. (vin is masculine, singular)
Ex: voici des étudiants français. (étudiants is masculine, plural.

· française, for things or people that are feminine singular,
Ex: voici une fille française. 

· françaises, for things or people that are feminine plural,
Ex: voici des voitures françaises.

When talking about a Frenchman, or a Frenchwoman, or French people (nouns), capitalize the F:
· Ex: les Français aiment le vin. (the French = French people)
Ex: voici des Françaises.(some French women)

ARTICLES

Articles often are a total mystery for my students. Definite, indefinite, partitive, all that does not mean anything to them, and is definitely very confusing. The problems is that articles are an essential part of the French language ; they are often the only way of knowing whether something is singular or plural, feminine or masculine, and are the indispensable companion of the noun, except if:
- It’s a proper name: 
Ex: j’aime Anne
- You already have a number, a possessive, demonstrative or interrogative adjective:
Ex: j’ai deux maisons (cardinal number)
Ex: c’est ma maison (possessive adjective)
Ex: c’est cette maison (demonstrative adjective)
Ex: quelle maison est-ce ? (interrogative adjective)

Now, I don’t pretend to give an exhaustive lesson on articles ; there are so many exceptions, idioms, or special uses that I honestly don’t think I can. But here is a basic explanation that should clarify things a bit. I hope it helps.

A, AN or ONE, SOME, ANY

To translate this notion, the French use a combination of 2 articles ; the indefinite article (un, une, des, negative pas de), and the partitive article (du, de la, de l’, des, negative pas de).
Note that these 2 groups of articles have the same form in the plural and the negative. So the problem is only in the singular.

In the singular:
When you are talking about a whole item, use an indefinite article:
un (masculine)
une (feminine)
Ex: voici une fille. (a girl, one girl)
Ex: donne-moi une pomme. (an apple, one apple)
Ex: j’ai un Euro. (an Euro, one Euro)
Ex: je cherche un beau livre. (a pretty book)
Ex: j’achète une robe bleue. (a blue dress)

Remark: the indefinite article ‘a, an’, and the cardinal number ‘one’ have the same translation in French.

When you are talking about a portion of an item (food), or something that cannot be quantified (ex qualities, like patience), use a partitive article:
du (masculine)
de la (feminine)
de l’ (followed by a vowel)
Ex: je voudrais de l’eau, s’il vous plait. (some water, maybe a glass, or maybe a bottle…)
Ex: le professeur a de la patience. (patience ; unspecified quantity)
Ex: voici du gateau. (some of it, not the whole cake) 

In the plural:
It doesn’t matter whether the quantity is specified or not:
Des (both feminine and masculine)
Ex: j’ai des Euros. (some Euros)
Ex: je voudrais des pommes. (some apples)
Ex: elle a des amis formidables (she has (some) great friends)

In the negative:
Both the indefinite articles and the partitive articles become DE (or d’ followed by a vowel), whether it is singular, plural, feminine or masculine.
Ex: je n’ai pas d’amis. (I don’t have any friends)
Ex: elle n’a pas de patience. (she has no patience)
Ex: Il n’y a pas de livre. (there is no book)

Remarks:
In English, the article is often omitted. Not in French. 

THE

To describe a specific thing, use the definite article:
Le (masculine singular)
La (feminine singular)
L’ (followed by a vowel)
Les (plural)
Note: these articles remains the same in the negative.

Ex: je cherche le telephone. (the phone)
Ex: voici la maison de ma soeur. (the house of my sister)
Note the construction definite article + noun + de + noun to show possession.
Ex: où sont les toilettes ? (the bathroom)
Ex: je travaille à l’ordinateur. (at the computer)

The definite article is also used with general concept, where in English you’ll use no article. Try adding “in general” to the end of your sentence. If it works, use the definite article 

Ex: je n’aime pas le lait .(milk, in general)
Ex: les Français sont sympathiques. (French people, as a collectivity)
Ex: la patience est une qualité utile. (Patience, in general)

Remarks: 
- English doesn’t use any article in this case, but French does.

- The definite article is often used after verbs like aimer, adorer, admirer, detester, préférer, etc… since these verbs introduce nouns taken in a general sense.
Ex: j’aime le théâtre mais je préfère le cinema.

Contractions of the definite article

Now, here is what often confuses my students. The definite article contracts with à and de to create a “mutant” form:
à + le = au
Ex: je vais au supermarché (at the supermarket)
à + les = aux
Ex: je parle aux amis de ma soeur (to the friends of my sister)
à + l’ and à + la do not contract.
de + le = du
Ex: je ne reviens pas du concert, je reviens de la bibliothèque (from the concert- from the librairy)
de + les = des 
Ex: je parles des amis de ma soeur (about my siter’s friends)
de l’ and de la do not contract.
Note: these forms do not change in the negative.



Remark:
Now, this is confusing. As you now see, the words “du” and “des” can be different type of articles:
Ex: j’ai des amis (some friends = indefinite or partitive article, plural)
Ex: je parle des amis d’Anne (of the friends of Anne = contraction of the definite article)

The difference will show in the negative:
Ex: je n’ai pas d’amis. (the indefinite and partitive articles become de in the negative)
Ex: je ne parle pas des amis d’Anne (no change for the definite article, whether it is contracted or not)



Test your understanding, see if you can grasp the differences among:
J’achète un poisson (a whole one)
J’achète du poisson (some fish ; to cook probably, an unspecified amount)
J’achète le poisson bleu (the blue one, specifically)

